AREA ASSEMBLY CHAIRS MONDAY, 20TH JANUARY, 2014

Present:- Councillor McNeely (in the Chair); Councillors Read, Falvey, Beaumont, N. Hamilton, Atkin, Whelbourn, Currie, Havenhand, Johnston, Dodson, Swift and Sims.

Apologies were received from Councillor J. Hamilton.

19. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 11th November, 2013, were noted.

20. LEGAL ADVICE FOR FAMILIES

Sharon Lockwood, Solicitor from Howells Solicitors, was welcomed to the meeting. Sharon provided details to Area Assembly Chairs relating to the 'Free Advice for Families' programme that Howells were currently running.

The scheme provided free legal advice for parents in South Yorkshire until 2015. The scheme was running despite the legal aid cut backs that had come into effect from April 2013.

Howells had accessed the funding from a successful bid they had submitted to the Department for Work and Pensions to undertake a two year pilot. The parameters of the bid covered the provision of financial advice, family law, housing, debts, benefits and employment advice to families with children.

Those eligible included: -

- Separated and separating parents;
- Threshold earning level of up to £45,000 (single income, not combined income);
- Covered a free appointment and three hours of work;
- Mediation;
- Counselling for couples or individuals;
- Engagement.

Discussion ensued on the scheme as presented: -

- This is a useful resource and should be promoted widely.
- In some Area Assemblies the information leaflets were being widely distributed;
- Why was the scheme not available for couples without children and parents who were remaining together but still requiring help?
 - o The focus of the tender had to be specific about which

groups would be eligible.

- Sustainability of the scheme following the end of the pilot;
- · Costs of family law processes: -
 - People were increasingly representing themselves in court and taking 'background' advice from legal professionals on the paper work and processes;
 - Some areas of family law still had access to free legal funding, including domestic violence and cases where children's social care were involved.
- Potential for future support at the end of the funding and taking the funding over a longer period.

Resolved: - That the information shared be noted.

21. AREA ASSEMBLY UPDATE

Andrea Peers, Area Partnership Manager, provided an update in relation to the Wentworth Valley Area: -

- Community First Celebration before Christmas, 2013. All current projects had been showcased together. The event had been well attended, upbeat and there had been cross pollination of ideas;
- Community members had helped to arrange the event, they had accessed mentoring, funding had been accessed from the Community Leadership Fund.
- An awareness raising session on countering CSE was planned for community groups on signs to look out for and what to do. Following the event a report would be brought back to Area Assembly Chairs about how well the event worked.

Andrea Peers, Area Partnership Manager, provided an update in relation to the Rother Valley South Area: -

- Disused allotments letters had been sent to plot holders regarding rights and responsibilities.
- An 'Uprising Event' was planned for 21st February, 2014 for young people. It would be hosted and run by JADE and aimed to give an authentic nightclub experience for under 18s. Funding had been accessed from JAG money and a bid to CAP. It was hoped that 600 people would attend. Partners including sexual health, Know The Score and the Community Alcohol Partnership would be in attendance and have information available.

Christine Staniforth, Area Partnership Manager, provided an update in relation to the Wentworth North Area Assembly Area. The funeral of Harry Toole had been really well attended. The condolences of all were passed on to his family, his death was a sad loss to the area.

LED Christmas tree lights had been purchased from Swinton and Wath Members' Community Leadership Fund contributions.

Affordable warmth Sessions provided by the National Energy Action organisation had been run for staff and partner training in the areas of Wentworth, Harley and Brampton. Council houses were classed as relatively energy efficient, so efforts were being concentrated in areas where housing stock was less well insulated. Further sessions in February would be provided. Feedback about the training session was shared from an Elected Member who had been in attendance. Christine agreed to pass this back to the NEA, who had been the external training providers.

Christine Staniforth, Area Partnership Manager, provided an update in relation to the Wentworth South Area Assembly Area. A Christmas event had been run on 23rd December, 2013, in Dalton Parish Hall. Twenty-two people had attended. The Christmas Fayre was for disadvantaged community work. A 'Summer Wonderland' event was planned for February.

Shaun Mirfield, Area Partnership Manager, provided an update in relation to the Rotherham North Area Assembly Area.

- Presentations that would be provided for the Area Assembly included the HS2 presentation and the Integrated Youth Support Services.
- Potential relocation of the SNT base;
- Consultation events relating to 'Supporting the Landlord Licensing' in the central areas;
- A meet and greet with new Officers, Members and partners had been arranged;

Councillor N. Hamilton wished to record his thanks to Sargent Billy Bell, who had moved to the Maltby Area, for his service.

Discussion ensued on the premise requirements for the area's SNT. A further meeting would take place with all Partners to resolve the issues.

Resolved: - That the information shared be noted.

22. COMMUNITY FIRST EVALUATION

Consideration was given to the report presented by Shaun Mirfield, Area Partnership Manager (Housing and Neighbourhood Services, Neighbourhood and Adult Services Directorate) that outlined an evaluation of the impact of the Community First Neighbourhood Match Fund in Rotherham to 31st December, 2013.

Nationally, there were three aspects to the Community First Neighbourhood Match Fund: -

The Neighbourhood Match Fund - £30 million - a small grants

programme for some of the most deprived areas in England, administered by the Community Development Foundation (CDF);

- National Endowment Match Challenge £50 million;
- Community Organisers.

The Cabinet Officer for Civil Society viewed the Community First Neighbourhood Match Fund as: -

- A means of enabling small social action projects, encouraging individuals/groups to bring change to some of the most deprived communities in the country;
- 2. A tool to support new and existing projects;
- 3. Part of a broader power shift, putting local residents in the driving seat, building their capacity and confidence to develop community led solutions.

Evaluation had been undertaken in Rotherham based on the three Cabinet Office objectives.

There was confidence that the Community First Neighbourhood Match Fund was meeting the first objective in Rotherham.

- £712,000 would be delivered into voluntary-community sector projects in some of the Borough's most deprived neighbourhoods. To date, £396,964 had been awarded by the eleven Ward based Community First Panels to 255 projects;
- The submitted report included examples of best practice in relation to the first objective, and included which of the Ipsos Mori categories each project supported.

In relation to the second and third objectives, the picture was more mixed. Funding had largely been awarded to existing projects. Panels had, however, increased their knowledge of and links to the work of existing projects in their Wards. Feedback from Panels' voluntary-community sector members had highlighted how they had welcomed the opportunity to work with Councillors and senior officers. Local residents had been involved in setting local priorities, approving projects for funding and projects representing community-led solutions to local issues. This represented a positive experience and confirmed that groups/organisations who, with support, could take on a greater role in future work.

Discussion ensued on the regrettable situation that had led to two of Rotherham's Deprived Neighbourhood's not being eligible to participate in Community First under the criteria supplied by the Cabinet Officer for Civil Society.

The next steps towards the end of the funding stream were discussed. It was noted that there was a £21,000 remaining allocation to be made from Year Three's funding allocation. Year Four's funding would need to be allocated over the nine-month period between April – December, 2014.

Discussion ensued on the information presented: -

- Increasing the range of voluntary and community sector organisations that submitted funding bids;
- Future infrastructure sustainability;
- Case studies in the report would be very useful way to illustrate the benefit;
- Information sharing between partners, including project management and analysis;
- A smaller number of small groups were coming forward with funding bids;
- A further message should be sent out emphasising the deadlines for when the money needed to be spent by.

Resolved: - That the information shared be noted.

23. BUDGET CONSULTATION

Consideration was given to the presentation Asim Munir, Community Engagement Officer (Housing and Neighbourhoods, Neighbourhood and Adult Services Directorate) gave that outlined the, 'Money Matters / Council Priorities Consultation (2014/2016) that had taken place towards the end of 2013.

The consultation process had taken place between 28th October, 2013 – 29th November, 2013.

The presentation included: -

- Methodology how and where the consultation programme had been conducted:
- The questions asked as part of the 'Money Matters Consultation (2014-2016);
- How the 'on-line forum' had been used for the first time:
- The headline messages received by the on-line forum and the suggestion scheme, the employee budget savings initiative and the consultation event.

The headline messages gained so far: -

- Political and Governance issues;
- Human Resource issues:
- Making efficiencies;
- What could the community do more to help:
- Community responses mirrored what employees said;
- Needs-led focussing on those in the greatest need;
- Promotion on self-help:
- Earliest stage of intervention but not create a dependency either;

- Minimum cost of universal services;
- Multi-use of assets and greater partnering with the Voluntary and Community Sector;
- Silo working;
- Empowering communities to help themselves;
- Promoting and valuing volunteering;
- Promoting neighbourhood pride, supporting community groups with information and resources;
- Providing tools, equipment and training;
- Stop or reduce statutory or value and priority driven;
- Outsourcing and encouraging parish councils and the Voluntary and Community Sector;
- Strong support for delivery by private sector, VCs and parish open and competitative tendering;
- Funding in kind;
- Turn off street lighting;
- Direct payments.

The way forward -

- Media campaign and feeding back to the press;
- On-line forum feedback.

Discussion ensued and the following issues were raised: -

- Thought to be given to extending on-line forum style of consultation for future consultations;
- Support for the increased use of social media as a way of engaging and moving forward;
- Ensuring that those not using social media or the internet were not left out of opportunities for representation;
- With social media and on-line forums, it could be expected that an instant response was received to consultation responses.

The Community Engagement Officer reported that a Fair Trade Dinner had been arranged for 10th April, 2014. The meal would cost £20 a ticket for a five course meal. Tickets would be on sale shortly.

Resolved: - (1) That the information shared be noted.

(2) That the item of further utilising social media and on-line forums within Area Assemblies be brought to a future meeting for consideration.

24. TENANTS CONFERENCE 2014

Christine Staniforth spoke about the forthcoming Tenants' Conference. DATE.

Tenants had been invited through the tenant involvement letters, meaning

that advertising the event brought no additional costs.

Workshops to ne provided at the conference included – digital inclusion, demonstrations on how to access council services on-line, volunteering and welfare reform information.

Information relating to the Streetpride Champion re-launch, and the welfare seminar was also requested to be considered.

Resolved: - That the information shared be noted.

25. CSE AWARENESS RAISING

The previously mentioned CSE awareness/training event being hosted by Wentworth Valley was noted. It was agreed that the lessons learned would be passed on to a future meeting of the Area Assembly Chairs.

Resolved: - That the information shared be noted.

26. AREA ASSEMBLY AND AREA ASSEMBLY CO-ORDINATING GROUP MEETINGS

Consideration was given to the submitted document that outlined the Area Assembly and Area Assembly Co-ordinating Groups proposed Terms of Reference and Article 12 of the Council's Constitution. Minute No. ?? of the Area Assembly Chairs Meeting held on 11th November, 2013, refers.

Discussion was undertaken on the information in the documents. Feedback from the Area Assembly Chairs was positive, and a small number of factual matters were highlighted.

Required changes: -

- Change the date of the Annual Council Meeting shown at Section 7.4 to 6th June, 2014 (not 24th May, 2014);
- In Section 7.2.(9) remove reference to four-years of office and replace with 'a full term of office':
- Section 7.3 to make reference to 'co-optees'.

Resolved: - (1) That the report be received and its content noted.

- (2) That, subject to the above amendments being made, the Terms of Reference for Area Assembly and Area Assembly Co-ordinating Group Meetings, and Article of this Council's Constitution, be approved.
- (3) That the revised document be presented to Full Council to be ratified.

27. AREA PARTNERSHIP TEAM STAFFING UPDATE

It was noted that Kay Bacon, TITLE, had retired shortly before Christmas.

All of her colleagues had wished her well. A recruitment process was underway for this post.

Elaine Hedge, TITLE, was also due to leave the Council.

One Councillor wished to record their belief that silo-working was leading Area Assembly staff to have to spend large amounts of their time chasing information.

Resolved: - That the information shared be noted.

28. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING -

Resolved: - That the next meeting take place on Monday 10th March, to start at 2.00 p.m. in the Rotherham Town Hall.